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ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN H. FROUDE (Chairman): I would like to call this public
hearing to order. We have what I guess we can call a skeleton crew. In theory,
this groups represents both the Agriculture and Conservation Committec and the
Energy and Natural Resources Committee of the Assembly. We have here the following
members of the Energy and Natural Resources Committee: Assemblyman Olszowy,
Assemblywoman Totaro,and I am John Froude, Chairman of the Energy and Natural
Resources Committee.

We are interested in testimony concerning Senate Bill 1179, called the
Energy Facilities Siting Bill.

I am going to call first Doug Forrester, who, as I understand it, is going
to make a statement on behalf of the Minority Leader in the Assembly, Assemblyman
James Hurley. Doug works as a staff person for the minority party and will join
us at the table. He has been working closely with us on the Committee. He can

begin with his statement and then he can resume his role as one of us.

DOUGLAS FORRESTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the
‘Committee.

I am here this morning on behalf of Minority Leader Jim Hurley. I would
first like to say that Assemblyman Hurley feels very badly that he cannot be here
this morning. Due to circumstances beyond his control, he is unable to attend.
Nonetheless, he does thank you for holding the hearing.

I will make my comments brief this morning on behalf of Assemblyman
Hurley because most of the points that he would make in opposition to the bill
have been made at past hearings.

Assemblyman Hurley would like to go on record in opposition to S 1179.
His main concern focuses on the classic issue of home rule versus State interest.
He is concerned that S 1179 amasses a great deal of power in the office of the
Commissioner of Energy and, in effect, in. the office of the Governor. He does
not feel that it is warranted.

He mentioned that he has not received so many comments from so many people
as he has on this bill. There is a great fear among his constituency and among
many of the other people that he has contacted throughout the State that this
taking of power away from the municipalities and localities is going to be very,
very damaging in the long run. He is concerned that the term "energy czar" is
applicable, not at this point to Commissioner Jacobson. He is not speaking ill
of the Commissioner. But there is concern that in the future with this sort of
authority centralized in one place, it is going to be damaging to the interests
of the State in the long run. It is at least imprudent that we would put so
much power in one place.

Assemblyman Hurley will be making further comments on S 1179 at further
meetings, but he did want to take this opportunity to speak out in opposition to
the bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Thank you, Doug. Does any member of the Committee
have any questions?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Doug, does this represent a party position or is
it just an individual comment?

MR. FORRESTER: No, these are the sentiments of Jim Hurley as Minority
Leader, but not of the party as a whole.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Fine, Doug. You can join us now.
May I call upon Dr. David Morell from the Center for Environmental

Studies at Princeton University.

DAVID MORETL L: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As a research political scientist at Princeton University's Center for
Environmental Studies, I have been conducting research for the past several years
on energy facilities siting, both generally the process by which we make siting
decisions and, specifically, a number of case studies in New Jersey. One such
research project has resulted in a report for the U. S. Energy Research and
Development Administration (ERDA, now the U.S. Department of Energy), entitled
"State Legislatures and Energy Policy in the Northeast: Energy FaEility Siting
and Legislative Action." A revised version of this study, one copy of which I
have brought along and I believe other copies have been made available to this
Committee earlier -- a revised version gf this study, which explores state siting
statutes and legislative policies in the eleven states of the Northeast, is scheduled
for publication by the University Press of ;merica later this year. Another
research project, sponsored by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
and the U. S. Federal Energy Administration, resulted in the report entitled
"Who's in Charge? Governmental Capabilities to Make Energy Facility Siting Decisions

in New Jersey." I believe that these two studies have given me some insight into

this State's siting process for energy facilities in comparative perspective with
those of ten other states with which we share the Northeast.

In many ways, it is my opinion that S 1179 is an excellent piece of legis-
lation, giving much needed emphasis to site planning, accelerated permitting, and
development of a state siting strategy for new facilities instead of the existing
purely reactive stance. I am pleased to sec in the statute some of this thinking
which originally came, at least to some degree, out of my own research in the
"Who's in Charge?" study. It also calls for the implementation of buffer zones
to keep energy facilities at arm's length from society.

Having said that, however, let me make my position on the bill clear. I oppose
it as written because I am very concerned about the implications of several features
of the bill, in particular the extreme centralization of decision-making authority
in this vital area of public policy. The override power as presently stipulated
threatens to overturn a balanced and rather effective, if imperfect, structure of

governance over siting decisions in New Jersey. As such, these provisions pose a

! deep potential threat to future environmental quality in the State, to public
!i participation in a vital area of public police and, in the end, speaking as a
rt; political scientist, they pose a deep potential threat to political legitimacy in
i this State.

! First, however, let me turn to several other issues and then conclude
with some alternative suggestions for a new siting process which could combine.decision-
making efficiency with appropriate political equity for New Jersey's citizens.

I think that is what we ought to be seeking: this combination of efficiency and
1 equity, efficient decisions and political equity.

% First,let me note the issuebof the need for energy facilities. The
Department of Energy's function in determining the need for energy facilities is

a pivotal role of this agency. Prior to site selection, the basic decision must

be made on whether an energy facility is truly essential. Such decisions must

8 2



be made based on many components of conservation and use of alternate forms of
energy, including solar. Determination of rates of energy growth based not on
the traditional assumptions of "more equals bigger and better," but on the new

energy conservation ethic, efficiency of energy use, not abstinence, will
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become the fundamental decision upon which the State's energy facility siting
destiny will be determined.

One of the most difficult issues in energy facility siting is the
determination of the appropriate geographic aggregation for making this need
determination. Local, state, national, world - what level of geographical aggre-
gation is appropriate? What kinds of facilities, in particular, may be
essential to the national interest of the United States, but at the same time may
be deleterious to New Jersey's own environment? This issue of "national interest"
has been a vexing problem for implementation of the federal Coastal Zone Management
Act ever since its passage in 1972. And the material published by the federal
Coastal Zone Management on the issue of national interest is, in my opinion, by
no means adequate. In DOE's siting plans for New Jersey, are such National-interest
facilities needed in New Jersey? In my opinion, S 1179 should be modified and
amended to include specific criteria of legislative gﬁidance to DOE in making
such need determinations and in dealing with the issue of national versus state
perceptions of need.

We turn next to the issue of energy clusters. For a variety of reasons,

I beliéve that there is indeed merit in the concept of clustering certain energy
facilities in specified locations, as, indeed, is called for in S 1179. I would
strongly urge you, however, to term such areas "energy clusters" rather than
"energy parks," the phrase now used in the statute. This latter term of

"energy parks," to me at least, sounds too pleasant and bucolic to really describe
what we are talking about. An "energy cluster” certainly is not by most people's
definitions a park and it will not manifest the characteristics of a park, as is
evident to anyone who drives today on the New Jersey Turnpike through an energy
cluster.

Buffer zone implementation is the next point I would like to cover. I
support the idea of locating major energy facilities within a sizeable buffer
zone, to keep them at arm's length from the society they are designed to serve.
However, in my opinion, S 1179 needs additional specificity regarding land
use controls and their implementation within the designated buffer zones subsequent
to the identification of such zones. A recent California statute on the siting of
liquefied natural gas facilities, for example, contains explicit authority in
this regard to insure that once the buffer zone is designated it remains as a
buffer zone in perpetuity. In contrast, for many years until the Department of
Environmental Protection of New Jersey finally took action, nothing was done
to control housing growth around the Oyster Creek Nuclear Power Plant in Lacey
wanship of Ocean County, rendering this facility at Oyster Creek increasingly
impacted by nearby intensive residential development. I would suggest adding
phraseology in 1179 to insure that the buffer zones created remain buffer zones
and don't have intensive housing or other development located in them later on.

Let me turn now to the more important,. and as you well know, more
controversial issue, the removal of local permitting authority, as now stipulated in
Sections 13 and 32b. In my opinion, it is essential that strong local input in



energy facility siting be maintained. Let me call your attention to New York State
which fosters such input in its Power Planning Siting Law by mandating that local
governments be compensated for obtaining expert advice and testimony in the
public hearing process. The applicant for a power plant in this casc musl make
available $25,000 for this purpose, municipal expert advise, the unspent portion
of which is returned after completion of the hearings. Such a mechanism might
be used in New Jersey to increase the effectiveness of local input into State
public hearings on energy facilities.

I would go further, however. I am concerned that S 1179 goes too far
in shifting decision-making authority from local to State hands. County energy
facility siting plans are fine, but where is the authority to implement them? -
Not at the county level, in DOE. I suggest that public participation in an
effective, meaningful siting process will occur only if local or cdunty govern-
ments retain the authority to decide, not just to plan. Planning will not excite
the level of public participation which decision-making authority by its very
nature will attract. . '

This is not, however, a recommendation for a total local veto power over
major energy facilities. To me, that extreaé of home rule autonomy is just as
unacceptable as is the complete absence of a local decision-making role as
now stipulated in the bill as proposed. Instead, I believe that local govern-
ments must be given the explicit authority to act on a permit application from a
major energy facility, not just to plan but to say "yea" or "nay" to such a facility,
based on local perceptions of the facility's merits and defects - explicit local
authority to make a decision "yes" or "no", from theirown point of view in Lower
Alloways Creek or Salem or Princeton Township, or wherever - "yes” or "no."
However, subsequent to such a local decision, I believe that the State should be
given the authority to override a local rejection of a major facility or to reject
local approval of a major facility. We are talking about a sequence of events,
first, local, and then, State. However, when I look at the issue of State
override authority, I firmly believe that this immense power should be vested not
in the New Jersey Department of Energy, whether headed by the present Commissioner
or by some subsequent Commissioner, nor, indeed, in the hands of the Governor, but
in the hands of a citizen advisory panel like the present Natural Resources Council,
or in the hands, preferably in my view, of the Legislature itself - not delegated
by the Legislature, but a decision retained in the hands of the Legislature,
acting as the elected body for the citizens of this State. These are extremely
important and controversial political decisionsto override local rejection of an
0il refinery, a pipeline landfall, a nuclear power plant, etc. They involve
by their very definition an explicit affront to home rule and local autonomy to
determine their own land use and environmental destiny. In my opinion, to exercise
such override authority is a form of domestic imperialism. As such, such a
decision requires strong participant roles far beyond testimony at public hearings
by Executive Branch agencies. They require, in other words, a political decision
by the pre-eminent political agency in the State, the elected Legislature.

Indeed, in two other states of the Northeast, Legislatures have
acted to retain explicit siting authority over major energy facilities. Rhode
Island in 1974 and Vermont in 1975 passed legislation vesting final approval or
denial authority to the State Legislatures, themselves, over all proposed nuclear




power plant construction. In Rhode Island, this authority also includes oil
refineries. In addition, the legislatures of three Northeastern states - Con-
necticut, Massachusetts and Rhode Island - have passed legislation providing for
local decisions by referenda over all oil refinery siting proposals. A local
referendum must approve an oil refinery if it is to be build in Connecticut,
Massachusetts and Rhode Island.

Legislative approval on important or controversial energy facilities would
provide the checks and balances and the participatroy involvement in far-reaching
energy facility siting decisions, as opposed to total reliance on Executive
Branch officials.

Furthermore, let us look at the Department of Energy power to override
authority over other State agencies now set forth in S 1179. Especially in New
Jersey, where as we all know environmental degradation remains a serious public
health problem, it is essential that the environmental aspects of energy develop-
ment not be relegated to a subordinate role. Energy development is important,
so is environmental protection. Most energy facilities are large contributors to
air and water pollution. State environmental standards must become and remain
a paramount consideration in making decisions on all energy facility siting
proposals. In my opinion, the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
should retain its primary role in energy facility siting in order to protect the
citizens of the State, not only in the coastal zone, so-called CAFRA zone, but in
the State as a whole. DOE override of DEP decisions may, in the future, diminish
the public health and environmental considerations which today are included in
our State's energy development decisions. Again, it would seem preferable to vest
any necessary override in the Legislature itself or in a citizen panel rather
than in a three-person body, as presently stipulated in 1179.

Let me turn next to the issue of riparian decisions and the role of the

s At a1 L

Natural Resources Council. At present, the Natural Resources Council within DEP
retains strikingly important authority over siting decisions in areas covered
under this State's public trust doctrine for riparian lands. It is a very
important citizen body. While increasing our capacity in New Jersey to plan and
manage for needed energy facility development, which I support and endorse, I

feel that it is vital not to undercut the independent power of this existing citizen
panel. And I ask you to think about the question of whether the proposed floating
nuclear power plart off the shores of New Jersey will be improved under S 1179,if
it is passed as now written, without true citizen input which would be required
under the authority of the Natural Resources Council to make riparian decisiors in
the waters offshore, authority which exists under existing statute for the
Natural Resources Council.

In conclusion, a balanced energy facility siting process, with appropriate
levels of authority provided explicitly to local governments as well as to the
State, to environmental as well as energy agencies, to citizen panels as well as
technocrats, and to the elected Legislature as well as to the Executive Branch, is
by no means a panacea to solve all the complex political problems involved in
_determining the locations for new energy facilities. Far from it. Yet it is a
structure within which the legitimacy of siting decisions can be introduced into
.a political process from which it is generally absent today, and certainly absent
from S 1179 as now written. And it is a balanced process in which domestic

. imperialism, the exploitation of one areato the benefit of another, can at least




be understood openly rather than hidden behind the doors of the regulatory agencies
and the pronouncements of the experts. One way or another, people in a democratic

system are going to demand a voice in the major decisions that affect their lives.

As energy facility siting decisions increasingly impinge on local community

autonomy and even of State land use destiny, the overall siting system will have

to devise improved mechanisms to meet this demand for a voice in their own destiny.
A 1179 contains many important features, but requires modification to ensure that
appropriate balance'is maintained. Without such modificiation, I oppose passage
of this bill. Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Thank you, Dr. Morell. I am sure other members of
the Committee have some questions. I would like to begin by asking you: Have
you taken the bill in line-by-line fashion andare you now able to provide us with
specifics as to where changes are to be made and what changes you ,are advocating?
DR. MORELL: I have, of course, studied the bill line by line, but I am

not in a position to respond at this moment verbally to such an important sug-
gestion, as specific changes. I would be pleased to do so in writing and to
provide the Committee with line—by—line?recommendations at a subsequent date. I
would rather not do so now, except if you had specific issues you would like to

- explore while I am here. Rather than take it line by line from the top at this

}‘ point, I would much prefer the chance to contemplate a little more on those recom-

m mendations.
Uﬁ‘ ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I would like the Committee to have your thinking at
that level. No one, I think, would argue with your desire to put in balance the
number of factors that you indicated. I suspect there are some advocates for
this bill who would lay claim to the fact they have done just that. Whether they
have or not is what we are trying to determine.

DR. MORELL: My contention obviously is that they have not.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Right. I am rather interested in the override procedures
‘ that you have recommended to us as alternates to what we héve in the bill. You
ﬂTS are indicating that it should come back either to the Legislature or to --- What

council were you making reference to?
1 \ DR. MORELL: I recommended the Natural Resources Council, now set up to
ﬁ@ implement the public trust doctrine riparian decisions, really not as a council,
H*f itself, but as an example. I believe it consists of nine or eleven members,
citizens appointed by the Governor. They have a variety of backgrounds. They
serve on a part-time basis.
My preference, as I said, would be to do it in the Legislature, itself, with
hearings in the Legislature and in the way in which decisions are made in an
elected Legislature. But if that were felt to be too cumbersome, a citizen
advisory panel, either the Natural Resources Council or one like it, set up

specifically for this purpose, would seem to me to be preferable to the Com-

missioner of Environmental Protection, Commissioner of Energy and a third
individual appointed by the Governor, as now suggested in 1179. But, of course,
the importance of the override provision, as I suggested, in the Legislature'is
that it is an override of what? An override of a local decision. It could be
limited by time. The locals could be given 90 or 180 days to reach a "yes" or
"no" decision, after which time one could say: All right, if you haven't done
something at the local level by 180 days or whatever - I would want to think about
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the specifics of that - then it is assumed to be a "yes" decision. So they are

under the gun not to stall forever. I am not arguing for a system that stalls,

but for a balanced system that provides true local input, which in my view can
be provided only by the authority to make a real decision.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: That authority to make a real decision, of course,
is one of the difficulties - in fact, it might even be the crux of the matter that
we are dealing with here.

DR. MORELL: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Some of us are concerned that we not set up what in
essence is a hypocritical situation where we are saying to the locals, go ahead
and make your "no" decision, but in fact we will possibly override it.

In looking at this bill, there is opportunity for locals to indicate
their thinking on this matter and for counties to do the same. I would be interested

S,

in pursuing that further with you.

DR. MORELL: Certainly, Mr. Chairman. There is indeed provision for
an indication of local feelings and there is indeed a provision, reasonably good
provision, for county energy planning of necessary siting in a county like Ocean
or Cape May or Hudson. Those are good provisions, but they don't go far enough.
I have not yet seen a planning exercise which attracts the level of public interest
as a decision on power plant siting, such as the decision on a proposed oil storage
terminal in Port Jersey with the Steubber case a year or two ago. It is, in fact,
the decision which attracts the level of concerned citizen interest, the level

of attention. How many plans have we all seen that are written - the consultants'
full employment act that writes plan after plan with very little in the way of

citizen interest. But when one is reaching a decision, citizen interest is much

more intense.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Doctor, may I just interject something at this
time?

DR. MORELL: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: You are at least forcing me in my thinking to go
to the extreme pole with your advocacy. I am wondering whether we can't meet
some kind of common ground prior to that. I am really concerned that we are
maintaining the status quo if we go all of the way over to local control. I can
see where local control on these matters might indeed work against the public

interest of the citizens of the State.
DR. MORELL: I fully agree, if control were total.
ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I am not sure that veto power is essential to an

DU

interest in making the proper decision.
DR. MORELL: If, indeed, it were a veto power, I agree. I am not suggesting

g g

a veto power.
ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: What are you suggesting?
DR. MORELL: I am suggesting a sequential series of actions in which some-
one proposes a facility - that is step one - local or county - and I frankly haven't
thought through fully whether it ought to be one of the 567 municipalities.or one of the
- counties - but then one of the two then has a period of time - let me suggest a
' half year, 180 days - in which to make a "yes" or "no" decision on that proposal.
~ Subsequent to that, that decision stands unless the State in the interest of the
citizens of the State, or indeed of acting in the national interest, overrides
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that local decision, but through provisions of some difficulty - it would not be
easy, I suspect, for a Legislature to act to override a local decision --- It
would be possible, but not easy. Obviously, the fundamental political power of the
local municipalities rests with the State under the Constitution - rests here

with the State Legislature. Municipalities in the law, as I am sure you know,

but for the record, are termed creatures of the State. But it is not easy, in my
opinion as an observer and political scientist, for a Legislature to override the
true wishes of the citizens of a local area, though it is possible.

So I am suggesting if it really is in the State's interest to have a
pipeline come ashore at point x and the citizens who reside near point x say,

"No, we don't want it there," then provision must exist in my view for the State

to be able to override the citizens of point x. But point x individuals in my

view must be allowed first to say, "No, we don't want it," and not say it by
testimony of a few of them coming in, but in their own political process locally.

In my view, they should be given that right. And, secondly, the Staté must be given
override authority, which it already has, of course. One could pass a separate

law as the Congress did with the Alaskan pipeline in overriding the National
Environmental Policy Act, NEPA, and saying,."We are going to.build the Alaskan
pipeline." Legislatures under our national"anq_state constitutions have this
authority. I am simply asking that it be made explicit in an important statute

like this, with procedures established - and I will be happy to put some thoughts in
writing of specific procedures - for legislative or a natural resources citizen
panel override action, not a total veto, not a return to the status quo, but an
explicit process of sequencing at which there is first local and then State action.

Indeed, as I am sure the members of the Committee know, but for the record,
all decisions in a political system can be overridden - by judicial determination
that they are unconstitutional, by challenges under litigation. Some decisions of
states can be overridden by the federal government in our federal system, both on
constitutional grounds and through the actions of the American Congress at the
national level.

What I am suggesting with the importance of major energy facility siting
determinations in a densely populated, polluted state like ours is that we make
explicit a process of first local and then State action, not total veto, but not
total centralization.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: 2Zero in, if you will, on that State action, just
briefly, and subject to change when you render it into writing. What kind of
State action do you see? A municipality says "yea" or "nay." We will say it
says "nay" and the public interest seems to be counter to that. Where would
you see the next step as being? Certainly not -- well, I shouldn't say
"certainly not." I would prefer it not to come to the Legislature. I am not so
sure that the Legislature might not decide on that issue at three o'clock some
morning as part of a purely political package, rather than environmental and
energy consideration.

DR. MORELL: I am glad you put that into the record, Mr. Chairman,
rather than I. -

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I am more than willing to do that, Doctor.

DR. MORELL: Let me say I endorse what you said, but to state, therefore,
it indecd that is the best we can do as a political system, then I will place
my faith in it and as a constituent I will do my best to ensure, through my own
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testimony and whatever else I might do and my friends and coclleagues might do,
to get that decision made at three in the afternoon when people are perhaps a
little more awake or maybe before lunch cven, rather than at three o'clock in
the morning.

I happen to believe and I would suspect that most, if not all, of the
members of this elected body also égree that for all of its imperfections, this
is a body which is responsive to the real wishes of the citizens. I have no
problem with saying that decisions are made in a political process. It is
not always perfect. How else are we to know what the true State interest is in
overriding the interests of the citizens of municipality x on a pipeline landfall
or a nuclear power plant at which they vote eight to one against it, and someone
sits here and says it is in the State's interest to build it. How do we know
that? I feel we know that better by the members of these two chambers - this
one and the Senate - making that decision the best way they can than in relyQ
ing totally on appointed experts to make that decision for them. It may be
a responsibility which the elected members of these two bodies would prefer
not to have. But I can sit here and recommend that that is where, in my opinion,
it belongs.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Very interesting, Doctor.

Assemblyman Olszowy.

ASSEMBLYMAN OLSZOWY: Dr. Morell, I will be very brief. I have two
short questions. I am very much interested in your statement of the buffer
zone'implementation and keeping the public at arm's length. What is your recom-
mendation as to the distance of a buffer zone?

DR. MORELL: I would prefer to defer until I can provide details in
writing. Let me say that it clearly will be different from one kind of facility
to another. I would think that, at a minimum, around a nuclear power plant,
the 4- to 6-mile buffer zone being implemented under the CAFRA statute at
Oyster Creek. and the Salem HopeCreek Complex is an acceptable minimum to me.

ASSEMBLYMAN OLSZOWY: That is most important to me because I think that
excludes at least 40 percent of the State. And it means we are faced basically
now with a South Jersey problem rather than a North Jersey problem.

DR. MORELL: For something like nuclear power plants, I think that is
correct. If we need more nuclear power plants in this State, an issue which I
don't necessarily assume the answer to which is automatically yes - but that is
ﬁhe subject of a different hearing basically -- if we need more nuclear power
plants in the State, I don't think they do belong in densely populated North
Jersey. So I have no problem with buffer zones or other regulations which would
keep them out of the densely populated areas. For other energy facilities, the
buffer zone might be a quarter of a mile or half a mile. For liquefied natural
gas, it would be very large.

ASSEMBLYMAN OLSZOWY: My second question basically is what Assemblyman
Froude was alluding to, home rule versus State authority. At this’timg, with
Mr. Froude's permission, Iwould like Doug Forrester, our aide, to make recom-
mendations of something we found which may be a partial solution to home rule
versus State rule.

MR. FORRESTER: I don't know whether it is strictly appropriate at
this time. But perhaps it would be helpful to have our input on this. It seems
that the home rule question comes up again'and again and again. It is really the
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crux of the matter. How is it that we are best going to serve the interests of
the State? I think the home rule question can be taken on two levels. One is
purely a pragmatic level. Is it helpful to have the State override a local
decision just so it can put something in a place that is politically expedient?
Another level really concerns a political theory which I think is absolutely
essential to this kind of a discussion.

We have been thinking about how to reconcile State interest versus home
rule. I am sure you all have been doing this for a long, long time. But it
seems that if we think of the problem in terms of, let's say, the problem of
eminent domain, of a municipality coming into a small area and taking an individual's
property for the interest of that municipality, and we apply that to a State .
level, the State going to a smaller area, namely, a locality, and taking the
land necessary - of course, the land would be paid for -- but perhaps it would
be helpful to toss around the idea of also compensating the municipalities
above and beyond the gross receipts tax. If the State is going to ovef;ide
and violate the integrity of a municipality in so far as its decision goes,
perhaps they ought to pay for it and pay a substantial sum. This payment
would not necessarily have to be monetary. Pt could be --- Well, I don't know
what it could be. I suppose there are a variety, of possibilities. But if both
the energy company and the State were to pay for overriding the local decision,
perhaps they would think twice before they would go into an area that opposed
a plant.

Since Emil brought this up now, perhaps these comments would be
helpful. But I am interested in your ideas.

DR. MORELL: Mr. Chairman, I believe that Mr. Forrester has suggested really
two items on which I would like to comment.

'First, the practicality of the State override versus leaving the
status quo situation of municipal veto authority - I think it is both practical
and essential that procedures be established to move beyond the present system
into one in which some kind of override exists; in fact, that already exists.
You could pass a laonverriding objections to a floating nuclear power plant and giv-
ing that riparian land to the applicant if you wanted to. That is your authority
as I understand the State Constitution. But to make it explicit in the siting
process s o we as citizens understand and know how it will work from the begin-
ning and know what the rules and procedures are, is to my mind a great advantage.

In terms of the theory of home rule over State authority and in terms,
of course, of federalism, the basic nature of a federal political system, fifty
states versus the national interest - that is why I raised the issue of national
interest in my testimony - there are some very important and very troublesome
issues with respect to federal override of states, as in nuclear energy where
the federal government under the existing Atomic Energy Act and Supreme Court
decisions has pre-empted authority over the states and in the field of natural
gas siting, where a national gas facility was sited in the Hackensack Meadowlands
over the decisions of the HMDC by the Federal Power Commission, operating under
federal pre-emptive authority. It was not even local home rule, it was State -
rule in this case being pre-empted. They are tough issues, the toughest issues
in a federal politicai system when you want federal good guys to do good things,
but federal bad guys not to do bad things. Apply the same thing at the State

level - home rule versus local authority.
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It is very difficult. You want the State to make the right decision
in the State's interest and to override municipal action which is being too
parochial and wanting the wrong things. But you don't want the State to make
the wrong decisions to override the authority of the citizens of area Y who
want to pursue their own destiny and some bad guy at the State level is saying,
"No, you can't do that." How do you set up a system that allows that? You
don't ever have a perfect system. The system is as perfect as the people in
it. But, at least, you set up a system of checks and balances and of sequential
decisions and not in my view totally centralizing this authority, first, in the
hands of the Commissioner of Energy and, if there is a problem with DEP, in
a three-person body, which is, I suspect, in almost all of those cases biased
for the applicant and the energy development rather than environmental protection.
I think that is how the system would work. I would rather place that override
authority in the more cumbersome decisions of an elected Legislature.

Now, as to the idea of compensation, I have problems with that and I
could argue either way on that one and it is a complicated matter. Ip a way,
one would like to see adequate compensation for the exercise of override
authority. On the other hand, it comes too close to formal and explicit bribery
for me to really like it. The gross receipts and franchise tax already does
this. The pursuit of the tax ratable in making decisions on ‘a shopping center
or a major industry - and to heck with the traffic in the next municipality or
the pollution downwind - poses already many of the difficulties of overly compen-
sating through fiscal mechanisms for environmental degradation and for the
exercise of authority in one jurisdiction that harms another one.

The kinds of fiscal imbalances we already see at Lower Alloways Creek
in Salem County with millions of dollars in gross receipts taxes going to a
township of 1410 people, the kinds of housing developments stimulated in Lacey
Township within a buffer zone because of the low property tax in Lacey, given
the millions of dollars being paid to that community under the gross receipts
tax because of Oyster Creek -- those sorts of mechanisms, I think, pose serious
problems.

I would be pleased to respond more in writing on this issue of what
kinds of compensation.

Let me add one other thing. If the Assembly is going to pursue this
suggestion, it has to be beyond the gross receipts and franchise tax because
we are talking in this bill about more than electric and gas utilities. An
oil refinery doesn't pay anything under gross receipts. It is taxable under
real property tax. An oil pipeline is taxable that way; whereas, a natural gas
pipeline is taxable under gross receipts - it is very strange - because the
o0il facility is not built by a regulated monopoly.

MR. FORRESTER: The reason I didn't specify any particular form of
compensation was because I am particularly interested in the idea, itself.

If we are going into a municipality with the understanding that perhaps the
Commissioner of Energy under this bill would notify three municipalities that they
are being considered as possible sites for a given kind of plant, say,'a nuclear
facility, these municipalities would have a chance to respond. Let's say two

of them said "yes" and one of them said "no." If the State were to make the

final decision and say, "Yes, we want it in this municipality despite the fact
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that they said "no," that is our concern. And the idea of compensation is
something, regardless of what form it takes, whether it is monetary or not. -

I think that can be worked out --- But in tossing out this idea, I am interested
in the concept of compensation, of having the State who is making the deter-
mination to override the local decision have to pay. Right now, the energy
companies have to pay in the form of gross receipts tax and things like that.

But the State does not have to pay at all. It can make that decision on the
ground of overriding interest.

DR. MORELL: In that sense, it has a certain merit. Let me suggest, .
Mr. Chairman, two additional points on this issue of compensation.

First of all, I think if we are going to build in a system of compensation
which may have some real merit, we need to take into account the issue of
"next door" compensation so that not all of this money goes to a Lower Alloways
Creek and none to an Upper Alloways Creek or Quinton or Elmer or the other®
next door municipalities which are under the same kind of potential risk as
the citizens of Lower Alloways Creek, that the people downwind ot a oil refinery
but across a municipal boundary need a certain kind of compensation as well
as those in the municipality, itself. Some kiné’of mechanism for spreading the
compensation beyond the boundaries of that one municipality would be worth
thinking about. The formulas won't be easy. The formula for tax sharing in
the Hackensack Meadowlands i s enormously complicated, but is a much better
principle than putting the property taxes in one of thdse 14 municipalities
in the Hackensack Meadowlands and having the other 13 share none of those
property tax benefits. So if we are going to go part way for a compensatory
mechanism, let's take the next step, though a tough one, and figure out
sharing formulas for the "next door" problem.

Secondly, one would want to look at the procedures now in employment
at the national level under the Coastal Zone Act in the Coastal Energy Impact
Fund for providing federal moneys, essentially moneys off the oil leasing process,
for communities impacted by needed coastal energy facilities. There may be
some lessons that we could learn about the techniques of compensation from the
federal statute and now the federal regulatory material in the Federal Register
over the Coastal Energy Impact Fund.

ASSEMBOYWOMAN TOTARO: Dr. Morell, I think you have highlighted one of
the bits of testimony that we received from the local communities; and,that was,
the availability of moneys to employ their own experts. What we heard from the
representatives of the towns was the fact that they are in no position to fight
either the experts provided by the utility companies, the oil companies, or -
the State, itself. This mechanism for providing funds I think is something that
we should seriously take under consideration. '

One of the comments made was that under the capping procedure we have
now, they are really limited in coming to any type of conclusion based on the
experts. Is New York State the only one that does provide money for that purpose
at this point? «

DR. MORELL: I am not certain. I believe there are similar provisions
in the State of California. But the New York procedure is quite clear and is
described in Chapter 4 of this document which I will leave with the Committee
statf{ today.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Very good.

DR. MORELL: I think perhaps one doesn't want to copy it word for word,
but there are some lessons in the New York experience that might be worth our
considering here.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Another thing, you made a statement on page 5
on which I would like you to elaborate. You said, "Most energy facilities are
large contributors to air and water pollution, and state environmental standards
must be a paramount consideration. . ." Could you elaborate on that or document
it in some way?

MR. MORELL: I would be pleased to provide subsequent material in
writing which gives a comparison of energy facilities to other typical large
industrial facilities in terms of the pollution. Let me not give some wrong
numbers at this point, but give some orders of magnitude. Something in excess,

I believe, of 50 percent of the total sulfur dioxide pollution in the United
States emanates from power plants, coal-fired power plants, over half.

A great deal of the hydrocarbons in this State and other states emanates
from energy facilities as defined in this to include major petrochemical facilities,
the kinds of complexes we are familiar with both in the North Jersey energy cluster )
and the Delaware River energy cluster, not only in New Jersey but on the Pennsylvania
and Delaware sides. Essentially, the air pollution in this country is a result
almost entirely of the combustion of fuels in one way or another as we burn a
liquid or gaseous hydrocarbon in an automobile. Much of the pollution - hydro-
carbons and oxidants - comes from our automobiles, combustion of energy. Also to
be considered are the leakages at facilities like a petroleum storage depot or
fuel oil storage depot of the kind proposed three years ago in Hudson County,

242 storage tanks - an enormous addition to hydrocarbon loading in .the New York-
New Jersey metropolitan area. Consider the contribution - and I don't have
numbers in front of me, but I am sure that the New Jersey Department of Environ-
mental Protection air pollution people are better to answer this than I am - of
the pollution emanating from the Linden complex that one has sort of a sense of
when driving the Turnpike through that area.

Energy facilities, as I say, are major contributors. The kind of
loading - and I will get some figures from the Coastal Commission in California
of the proposed transshipment depot in Long Beach, California, for the Alaskan
crude - is equivalent to something like another million automobiles a year in
the Los Angeles area in terms of the amount of additional pollution being proposed
for the air. Every time you move oil from a tanker into a tank on land you
displace some air and some of the hydrocarbons come out. Every time we fill
our gas tanks at the pumping station, we are releasing hydrocarbons into the
air. 1In California, they have a system whereby they trap those hydrocarbons
into a filter at the gas station. We don't have that yet in New Jersey. Any-
thing to do with energy is a very serious problem with particularly air pollution and
to some degree with water pollution; the thermal discharge at a place like
Salem or Oyster Creek is enormous. We have had fish kills in the winter, as some
of you may recall, in the Oyster Creek area when they turned the heat source off
because the fish thought it was summertime and spent the winter in that area -
enormous contributors to air and, to some degree, water pollution.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Then it is actually a combination of things. The
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facility itself might not be a major pollutant, but it is the combination of
the environmental aspects around that facility.

DR. MORELL: Yes, exactly.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: So that would be a major decision in siting a
facility in the State of New Jersey.

DR. MORELL: Absolutely. Of course, with some of these facilities,
one has dangers of explosions of certain kinds. That will vary from one to
: another. There are technologies of buffering and burns, these extra concrete
walls around them. With issues of liquefied natural gas and nuclear energy,
one has special issues of safety in addition to the normal definition of
environmental pollution. Of course, the cancer issue comes up again and again
in terms of these discussions, that energy facilities tend to put into the air
certain kinds of benzenes and other carcinogenic material.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Are there any current studies going on right
now? We have had a briefing on the latest technology that is being employed
as far as construction and engineering of the new nuclear plants in the LNG
operations that they have. Is there any one that you know of in New Jersey that
also is monitoring these latest engineering developments?

DR. MORELL: Not in detail - not of which I am aware.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: Thank you.

DR. MORELL: The California statute, by the way, on liquefied natural gas
which I mentioned in the context of buffer zones is a very interesting statute
in terms of selecting alternate sites and state planning with public participation,
etc., and might be worth consideration by the Committee. I would be happy to
provide a copy of that which I obtained on a recent visit to California.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I am particularly interested - and hope you can
give us this - in the sequence because all of this last conversation offers

me more opportunity to express concern that we have the input of technological
expertise into that political process. I would hope that we get a rather detailed
sequence.
DR. MORELL: Mr. Chairman, I will be please to provide that. Let me
respond, if I may briefly at the moment, that so often in these areas -~ - and,
of course, I speak as a political scientist, not an engineer and not a nuclear
physicist. I have been interested in these issues of public policy in this
area of technology. I have no way of looking at the blueprints of a nuclear
power plant and knowing more about it than the average, ordinary citizen.
ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Maybe doing a disservice to you, but to make the
point crystal clear, yet you are suggesting that Assemblywoman Totaro or
Assemblyman Froude at three o'clock some morning, with a stack of maybe 20 or
30 bills, is somehow or other going to make a decision after reviewing that.
I challenge that.
DR. MORELL: I am indeed, Mr. Chairman, because I find in these areas
the experts disagree. Thus it comes back to us as citizens and to you, as our
elected representatives, to make the best decision you can, calling on the experts
to testify, asking them the tough questions: Why do you, Expert A, disagree with
Expert B, two nuclear physicists? You find in this area of liquefied natural gas and

-

nuclear energy power plant siting, the experts disagree. When that happens, it
| does seem to me it then resounds to us. Thus, I am not afraid to express my
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views on nuclear energy to the experts because I find they disagree with one
another and I have to live with this technology.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TOTARO: I, personally, feel as a legislator we tend
not to get testimony from such individuals as yourself. We are in a position
many times of hearing from those who are the interested parties who provide
us with testimony from those lobbying groups that are advocating a certain
position. Perhaps that is the reason why we make decisions without having full
knowledge.

If there is some way within the academic community, particularly
with regard to something as highly technical as these areas are, that we could
be given input, it would be of tremendous assistance. I know it would determine
my vote, much more so than the hour or the time of day that it is being brought
up before us.

DR. MORELL: Again you may want to consider mechanisms to ensure that
that happens. Certainly the institution in this State of an Office of the
Public Advocate is a good step forward in this regard. The ideas we were
talking about in New York State by making moneys available to municipalities
might be built in to make special moneys available for expert testimony to the
Legislature if one went to the legislative override idea. If money were
available to call on experts for a variety of locations from the academic
community, consulting firms and other places, then one wouldn't be totally
reliant on the wishes of the advocate, of the proponent of the facility.

It very much may be worth an additional $25,000 in money, or whatever the right
figure is, to hire testimony on, say, a floating nuclear power plant that

will cost several billion dollars, dollars of which all of us pay every month

in our electric bills. So another $25,000 for expert testimony about a facility
like that would seem to me, even in a state with money problems - and certainly
all of them, including New Jersey have money problems - would be money extrcmely
well spent. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Any further questions? (No questions.) Thank
you very much, Doctor. I think it was a most interesting and helpful dialoque.
I look forward to talking to you again.

DR. MORELL: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I would like to call a gentleman who evidenced
extreme patience at the last public hearing. He sat here from the beginning
to the end and didn't get an opportunity to speak. If we are not careful, he
will be here at the end again today.

Mr. Thornton, County of Cape May. Before you begin, let the record
show that Assemblyman Barry and Assemblyman Cowan are now part of the panel.

GERALD THORNTO N: We have a very brief statement today. I am
sure I won't hold you up very long.

Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, my name is Gerald Thornton. I
am a Cape May County Freeholder and Frecholder Director of the Cape May €ounty
Planning Board. With me today is Elwood R. Jarmer, Director of our Couhty Planning
Board staff. We appear today on behalf of the Cape May County Board of Chosen
Freeholders and the County Planning Board. At the outset, allow me to express
our appreciation for the opportunity to comment upon this complex and far-reaching

legislative proposal.
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Conceptually, we support the apparent objective of S 1179:; that is, to
establish a comprehensive and rational administrative program to plan for and
permit energy facility siting commensurate with New Jersey's energy needs and
environmental aspirations. The creation of a state energy facility plan and
a certification process predicated on such a plan are well reasoned responses
to the currently fragmented permit process and are much nceded reforms.

However, we are concerned about the ability of a single superagency (o

j;; simultaneously and faithfully discharge the conflicting responsibilities of
i promoting energy facility siting and protecting environmental values. If,
indeed, the Department of Energy is to be delegated the comprehensive powers
within the bill, even stronger checks and balances should be conferred to

; interested and affected parties outside of the Department.

The balancing function of the Department of Environmental Protection
and spirited public involvement should be incorporated into this legislat{on.
| For example, the over-emphasis on speedy "one stop" permit shopping sacrifices
‘ other significant economic and environmental concerns. The lack of provision

for meaningful public participation, affirmative local governmental planning,

police powers, and a sound record for fully infprmed decision-making are serious
~ii omissions.

Moreover, the spcecific facilities of floatfng nuclear power plants
and breeder reactors are so laden with significant implications, we firmly
believe that they should be deleted from S 1179 immediately and made the subject
of extensive hearings in separate legislative action. Such facilities should
not be authorized unless compelling and persuasive evidence can later be found
} regarding positive measures to absolutely mitigate the impacts of those unknown A
! technologies.
Other fundamental concerns include the following:
1. Exemptions from Local Control - Sections 13 and 29. The provisions
| of Sections 16 and 17 enable preparation and adoption of county energy facilities
;_ plans. Taken together with the requirements of the Municipal Land Use Law
i1 (Chapter 291, P.L. 1975) at Article 3, C.40:55D-28 (19 d) municipal master plan
! use elements must reconcile themselves with county comprehensive plans. Sections
13 and 29 of S 1179 should be amended to provide that the Department of Energy
’I’ may override local prerogative only where county and local plans are arbitrary
’ and unreasonable, and where the State interest in energy facility siting has
1! not been meaningfully considered.
i ; 2. County Energy Facility Plans - Sectiore 16 and 17. We strongly endorse
; these provisions. However the six-month time frame is unreasonable. The logistics of
! ! ' obtaining, collating and analyzing data, formulating the ten-year plan, printing and
! disseminating the plan, notifying the public of conducting a hearing or hearings,
id consulting with other county and State agencies, and, finally, adopting the plan,
\ cannot be realistically accomplished within a six-month period. By comparison,
t

energy industries are required to prepare a three-year plan within the same time

frame. We also urge that some planning funds be appropriated to finance the

preparation of county plans with proper local matching funds. -
3. Eminent Domain - Section 24. This section should be amended to

clearly direct that lands, quote, "lands under water, meadowlands and riparian

rights" (page 27, lines 8 and 9) acquired by the State should only be used for

et e« i
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pipelines and transmission facilities to buffer areas and not for enerqgy generation,
production or processing facilities of any kind.

4. Hearings and Records for Decision-making. The hearing procedurces
leading to records for decision-making should be amended to provide that sub-
stantive questions regarding energy plans and site certification should be answered
completely at the hearing or within a reasonable period of time thereafter. In
short, a full and meaningful record must be established to ensure public account-
ability. '

5. Findings. Inasmuch as S 1179 empowers the Department of Energy Com-
missioner with sweeping authority, and nearly unbounded discretion, the bill is
deficient in that it does not clearly specify the manner in which authority is
to be used. The bill should be amended to require that no certificate of site and
facility shall be issued unless the Commissioner makes specific findings of fact,
including, for example, that:

a. A complete factual record has been established.

b. Issuance of a certificate of site and facility would cause minimum
feasible disruption of existing coastal recreation and tourism, fishing and
shellfishing industries and resources, and proposed, and future opportunities
thereof.

c. The facility complies to the maximum extent practicable with adopted
county and local plans.

d. The environmental impacts of the facility will be mitigated to the
maximum extent practicable by employing the best available safety technology.

e. The operator of any facility shall employ the best engineering.
practice to conduct his operations.

6. Riparian Statutes - Sections 41 and 42. Under no circumstances should
the Legislature surrender control of riparian lands to any executive agency for
the purpose of constructing nuclear power generating stations. As recommended
above, this issue should be treated separately.

Secondly, the amendment enabling pipelines within the three-mile juris-
diction of the State should be seriously reconsidered and substantially amended.
The concern here is that pipelines induce development of other energy facilities
including gas processing plants, compressor and pumping stations, and possibly
oil refineries and petrochemical complexes. Section 42 should be amended to
specify that the following minimum conditions are met:

a. The number of riparian pipeline corridors shall be limited to no
more than three.

b. The form of conveyance shall be leases, not grants, and shall not
exceed a primary term of four years.

c. Renewability of leases is contingent upon goodhoperating practices
and diligence in minimizing negative environmental effects.

d. The lessee'sliability for damages is unlimited.

e. The lessee's activities are consistent with adopted local, county
and State plans, regulations and policies.

f. The lessee shall employ the best available and safety technc;logy
for all activities, including pollution control, cleaning and removal of equipment.

g. The lessee shall have a pollution control plan approved by the
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Department.

h. The lessee shall remove any equipment appurtenent to his facility
within 90 days of the termination of his lease.

i. Leases may be terminated for cause.

j. Affected counties shall participate in an advisory capacity with
the Council when such leases are proposed.

In conclusion, we believe that unless S 1179 is substantially amended,
the Legislature will have created a monster with awesome bureaucratic power.

Here I am going to deviate from my text and say in Cape May County, the
Chamber of Commerce and the League of Municipalities are opposed right now
to this legislation in its present form. The reason that we arc opposed is that
we are concerned. We have environmental impacts in Cape May County that could
be very, very detrimental. This bill could be very, very detrimental to us. We
are a resort county. Our fishing and beaches constitute the bottom line in our county.
We cannot take the chance of having that area spoiled. Just this year, it is
estimated that we will receive $16 million in Canadian tour dollars in Cape May
County. Therefore, I think we should be well pYotected and I think you have
an obligation to protect us. -

In conclusion, we remain hopeful that this Committee and the Legislature
will work their wills and that these serious concerns and recommendations will
be addressed.

I offer the Committee whatever assistance you may need from the Cape
May Planning Board and myself. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Thank you. Does any member of the Committee have
a question?

ASSEMBLYMAN OLSZOWY: I just have one statement to make in reference to
your problems with the riparian pipeline corridors, the leases, etc., etc.

This Committee did go to Louisiana, at a cost of about $3,000, and we brought
back all the information from thé Louisiana State Legislature that would be
necessary to protect the State of New Jersey and the counties. Mr. Norman Miller
has all that in his possession. We have the fifty years of experience of the
State of Louisiana in dealing with oil companies and energy matters in our
possession.

MR. THORNTON: The only thing I can say, sir, is that I find
when we are dealing with the major oil companies or the major interests,
sometimes the local concerns are overridden. I think all of us have a responsi-
bility to see that this doesn't happen. It happens in Louisiana and it happens in
California and it happens throughout this nation that a large major utility
or oil company, many, many times, is able to override local and state issues.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: May I ask you how long it would take you people
in Cape May to come up with the plan that is called for in S 11797 You felt
six months was not long enough.

MR. JARMER: We spent about two and one-half years preparing a county
comprehensive plan. We have a pretty good sound basis in Cape May County for
planning. So I would think a year would no£ be unreasonable. We would like
more time, but we could probably get something done in a year. Now counties
that have not adopted a county comprehensive plan upon which a further energy
plan could be developed undoubtedly need more time. '

I think you may have some testimony from some other counties. They
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may want to address how they would go about devising an energy plan in
the absence of an adopted county comprehensive plan. I would say for us,
at least a year.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: Any further questions? There being none, I
thank you gentlemen very much for your presence.

MR. THORNTON: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN FROUDE: I would like to call on Winifred D. Meyer, New

Jersey Division of the American Association of University Women.
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WINTIFRED D. M E Y E R: I am Winifred D. Meyer, Legislative Chairman

of the New Jersey Division of the American Association of University Women, and

I represent its President, Mrs. Doreen Utman, and its approximately seven thousand
members.

Once again, before I comment upon the bill - which is a tremendous
effort to implement the Master Plan - I still must congratulate the Department
of Energy upon that Master Plan as an example of a document which reflects much
public thinking, arrived at through its dedication to the encouragement of citizen
participation during each phase of its development.

The original S$-1179 held quite well to that same objective of a coordi-
nated, cooperative effort on the part of everyone in the State. But the amended
bill seems to set a different role for the Department of Energy. For instance,
three different sources: Section 13 of the Department of Energy Act, as quoted
in the Master Plan, the Memorandum of Understanding between the DOE and the DEP
on Coastal Zone Management and the original S-1179 give coextensive or coequal
jurisdiction to the state departments. However, Section 28 in the amended bill
states - and I quote - "In the event that the findings and determinations trans-
mitted by any chief executive officer...etc...fare overridden by the Commissioner.
of Energy...etc." Frankly, we do not see the DOE bverriding as a department
but cooperating and coordinating.

Section 28 goes on to provide that in the disagreement situation, the
matter would go before an Energy Facility Review Board, to whésecomposition we have
previously objected. 1In fact, we feel that in a situation where the DOE disagrees
with another department, at this point where all extraneous considerations have
been eliminated, it would be far more effective to have a limited and formal hearing,
perhaps using court procedure, before an expanded energy facility review board of
at least five members. And, after listening to Dr. Morrel, although I disagree
with his referring it to the Legislature, perhaps it should be nine or eleven
members. I agree with you. Furthermore, this procedure should be automatic,
not dependent upon the disagreeing department's appeal for it. We recommend these
proceedings which we feel would necessarily produce a more satisfactory, just, and
possibly more logical decision.

One of the New Jersey Division's priorities is citizen participation in
decision-making, as apparently it was in the formation of the Master Plan.
Consequently, it is difficult to understand the statement in Section 29 in its
disregard for local or county zoning. I understand very clearly the intent of
the makers of the bill here because - I will give you an example - I find that
very often the scope of consideration of local communities, particularly, and
their conflicting desires in various areas, get in the way of really doing what
is best for that community. Barrier Island, on which I live, the same township
permits - and this is as recent as two months ago - houses to be built right on
top of the dunes, in spite of the fact that the Miami Hurricane Bureau has
warned against anything happening to the dunes. That same community, now that
we have about 150 thousand people on the island for the summer, has a great «
big ad in the Beach Haven Times, which says that people who walk over the dunes
and destroy the dunes will be prosecuted. So, I understand very well the
intent of the drafters of the bill.

"~ As much as we realize that in a democracy the good of the many must
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sometimes supersede the desires of a few - and the energy problem is acute enough
to have this apply, there is no doubt - at least some instrument should be re-
quired to be sure the DOE gets full input from the local and county levels. I
have found that it is very difficult in a democracy - which depends upon the
actions of the individual - to convince him that he has responsibilities that
match his rights. Sometimes, you just have to force him to do it. So, instead
of permitting each county to submit a l0-year county energy facilities plan,
continue to permit a county to so act, but also require each county to submit,
every three years, items "a" through "d" listed under Section 16 and also subject
to Section 17, the public hearings, because those items would bring forth opinions
on the local level.

Now, it is true that some aid, financial or expertise, may have to be
provided by the State in these cases, but the DOE will then be sure that it has
the grass-roots thinking from the whole state, which is of course the objective
of this whole citizen participation area.

We are happy to note that there are provisions for hearings, particularly those
upon the State Energy“Facilities Plan, however, the time span between notification
of the hearings and the hearings themselves does not appear sufficient for the
average citizen to study the matter properly and arrive at careful conclusions.

We have felt for some time that government needs to get the materials out earlier
and/or give more time for consideration before requesting citizen reaction.

To carry the matter further - and I think this is very important - it
would be useful if more opportunities were provided, not only for citizen reaction
but for input by the citizen before the plans are drawn. I have had requests many
times from legislators who say, get to us before the bill goes in; don't wait for
the bill to go in. And, I think the same type of thing applies here. DOE did
do this to a certain extent before combining its segments into a master plan.

Toward early input by all, we encourage early education of the citizen,
beginning with the use of schools - not necessarily education of the children but
the use of schools to educaté the citizen belonging to interested organizations with com-
munication routes to its members - such as ours. We offer you that communication
route because we have a system by which we can get pro and con quite easily.

Another thing that I think is very useful is small two-way communicatory
groups that are representative of various interests. These would not be an
advisory committee, nor anything, but just two-way something to organizations,
people, and so on. They could be attached to the several divisions, or agencies,
of the DOE, to get the word out and particularly to get the word back to the
department.

It is our deep conviction that early education of and input from the
individual citizen is the only way to make a program successful, particularly when
there are as many facets of disagreement as in the Energy Plan. I think planning
has to be from the bottom up with every level having input into it, not from the
top down. :

We have faith that in our democracy if the individual can be made to
understand all the implications of a situation and has a chance to contribute, that
he will react in an intelligent and mature manner. We keep éoming back, full
circle, always to having the citizen know exactly what is implied in all of these
decisions that he makes, or takes a sudden opinion on. So, therefore, we recommend
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amending Section 4h to incorporate the formal school system, public organizations,
any government body, and other citizen bodies as means to citizen education. It
would probably be more effective if it also included some seed money to launch
such a campaign.

You are very well aware, as most of us are, that we are going to have
to have a tremendous education campaign, not only to pass a meaningful bill but
to get support for what it provides for afterwards.

Regarding the environment, whose protection is paramount in our think-
ing, we feel the bill should be more explicit in defining the role of the
Department of Environmental Protection in its fyll regulatory responsibility over
the construction of energy facilities in the Coastal Zone under three coastal
permit programs - The Coastal Area Facility Review Act, the Wetlands Act, and
the Waterfront Development Permit Program - and that it maintain that regulatory
responsibility throughout the State. They are the experts. Together with the
State and local implementation of the National Environmental Policy Act and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, such as Water Quality Planning under 208,
the groundwork for much of the siting suitability has already been laid. Again,
this is true in the Solid Waste Administration?of the required county plans for
resource recovery facilities. These are only exaﬁples of the whole vast body of
resources available to the DOE through the DEP.

Usually, it is conceded that the same body which is doing the planning
should not also be judging the environmental impact of that planning. Really, this
is part of our democratic system of checks and balances, which you know very well
started before the Constitution. Therefore, as the bill is written, it relies
heavily on the judgment of a commissioner who must be both knowledgeable and
dedicated. We are indeed fortunate in having such a commissioner in Mr. Jacobson.
However, in a democracy we live under the rule of law, so that we need not depend
upon the qualifications of any one individual. We recommend that S-1179 be
amended with this fact in mind. .

We see the role of the DOE, in addition to its duties as a top-level

government agency, as a coordinator of the tremendous body of resources and elements

provided by the other departments, industry, commercial interests, and the general
public, cooperating with all to the utmost, and resolving all differences in